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September 22, 2003

Mr. William Norton

Air Pollution Control Officer

Bay Area Air Quality Management District

939 Ellis Street

San Francisco, CA  94109

Via hand delivery and certified mail

Re:
Chevron Comment on the Proposed Major Facility Permit for the Chevron Products Company, Richmond Refinery, Facility #A0010

Dear Mr. Norton:

The purpose of this correspondence is to comment on the August 13, 2003 proposed Major Facility Review permit for the Chevron Products Company, Richmond Refinery (2003 comments, 2003 proposed permit, respectively).  This set of comments is presented as an update of the comments submitted for the June 26, 2002 draft permit (2002 draft permit), which we submitted on September 27, 2002 (2002 comments).  Issues that are resolved in the 2003 proposed permit have been removed.  Unresolved issues remain and new issues and corrections have been added.  

In many cases District staff did not provide rationale for their rejections of Chevron’s 2002 comments and for the District’s additions and changes to the permit.  Therefore, Chevron cannot determine whether we agree with the rejections, changes, and additions or not.  Further, there are enough errors and omissions in the new draft permit that Chevron cannot tell whether the District rejected a recommended change because they disagreed with it, or whether they simply neglected to address it.  Chevron has provided additional information where it seemed reasonable to do so, and in many cases we resubmit our previous arguments.  Finally, based on past experience, Chevron expects many more errors inconsistencies and unresolved issues to be introduced into the next and future revisions of the proposed permit.  In any case we reserve our right to take legal action on any issue which we were unable to identify in these comments as an issue because we were not able to determine the District’s intended actions or reasons for taking such actions.

Comment Format

Chevron's 2003 comments are presented in tabular format and include a unique 2003 Issue Number.  The 2002 Issue Number is the issue number carried over from our September 27, 2002 comments.  For new comments the Permit Page Number refers to the page in the 2003 proposed permit.  For comments carried over from 2002, it is the page in the 2002 draft permit.  The Chevron Tracking Number is carried over from our 2002 comments and provides the exact row-location reference for each issue in each table of the 2002 draft permit.  New comments do not have tracking numbers.  The Section/Table Number indicates where the issue resides.  The Chevron Comment provides the recommendation and basis for each proposed revision.  BAAQMD Responses to 2002 Comments is our best guess as to how the BAAQMD responded to our 2002 comments.  Chevron would appreciate the District using this column to document their responses and the basis of their responses to our comments.  Outstanding Issue indicates whether the issue is still unresolved.  (Resolved 2002 comments have been removed from the 2003 comments.)  Yes-M entries indicate mistakes which should be corrected.  Yes-I entries indicate unresolved issues.

There are no new supporting-information appendices.  Our comments refer District staff to the exhaustive tables and appendices included in our 2002 comments as well as permit applications and other supporting correspondence Chevron has provided during the course of Title V permit development.  As the District did not appear to have utilized the permit draft markups we submitted with our 2002 comments, we have not included them in this submittal.  

Federal Enforceability Analysis

Chevron made its own Federal Enforceability determination for each permit condition and each regulation contained in the draft permit.  This analysis and subsequent determination was summarized in two documents contained in our 2002 comments.  The District appears to have considered Chevron’s federal enforceability recommendations in cases where the issue involved simple corrections based on the SIP status of a rule or permit condition.  But the District does not appear to have considered Chevron’s other federal enforceability comments which questioned the SIP status of permit conditions which were adopted according to then-current District permitting rules and regulations but were not required by the less stringent permitting rules then included in the SIP.  Since The District has not provided a basis for their rejection of our proposed changes, we cannot comment on it.  And so, dozens of federal enforceability issues remain open.  Chevron refers the District to our 2002 comments for the basis of our recommendations.  We have attached an updated Federal Enforceability (i.e. SIP dates) table for District staff reference.  

Chevron’s review of the draft permit identified many inconsistencies between the Statement of Basis and Engineering Evaluation, and the 2003 proposed permit.  Again, since we cannot tell if these conflicts indicate an error in the permit or whether the District did not update the Statement of Basis and Engineering Evaluation, we cannot make meaningful comments.  We therefore reserve our right to take legal action on issues pertaining to the Statement of Basis and Engineering Evaluation once the District has updated them.

Chevron has submitted a petition to the EPA to object to the 2003 proposed permit in its entirety on account of its numerous errors and unresolved issues.  Chevron similarly requests the District to delay issuance of the permit until a proposed permit that reasonably resembles the final draft can be submitted for EPA and public review.

Chevron incorporates by reference the respective comments submitted by each of the five Bay Area refineries relative to their draft Title V permits.

Thank you for considering our comments.  Please contact me at (510) 242-1400 if you have any questions.   

Sincerely,

Attachment

cc:
Jack P. Broadbent - Director, Air Division, USEPA

(Attention Ed Pike)

bcc:
John Hansen, Pillsbury Winthrop, LLP





